STATE OF NEW HAMPSHI RE
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATI ON
BUREAU OF RI GHT- OF- WAY
PUBLI C HEARI NG and FI NDI NG OF NECESSI TY MEETI NG
NOTTI NGHAM PRQIECT 40612
THURSDAY, MARCH 21, 2024

PROPCSAL TO REPLACE THE BRI DGE

ON NH 152 OVER THE NORTH RI VER

Publ i c Hearing held at Nottingham El enentary
School , 245 Stage Road, in accordance with RSA
230: 14 and the Surface Transportation and Uniform
Rel ocati on Assi stance Act of 1987 to di scuss the
repl acenent of the Red List bridge that carries NH
152 over North River, in the town of Notti ngham New

Hanmpshire, conmmencing at 6: 00 p. m
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PUBLI C HEARI NG THUS HELD BEFORE THE COWM SSI ON
MEMBERS APPQO NTED BY THE GOVERNOR AND EXECUTI VE
COUNCI L:

COW SSI ON OF THREE PERSONS MEMBERS:

Ri chard Merkt, Conm ssion Chair

Ray Chadw ck, Commi ssion Menber

Terence (Terry) Pfaff, Conm ssion Menber

SPEAKERS PRESENTI NG

Jason Trenblay, P.E., Project Manager, Bureau of Bridge
Desi gn, NHDOT

Tom Levins, P.E , Project Consultant, Gw

Rebecca Martin, Environnental Mnager, Bureau of

Envi ronnment, NHDOT

Adam Sm th, Assistant Bureau Adm nistrator, Bureau

of Ri ght-of-Wy, NHDOT

OTHER ATTENDEES:
Paul Coddi ngton, Chief of Adm nistration, Bureau of
Ri ght - of Way, NHDOT
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OTHER ATTENDEE ( CONTI NUED) :

Emly Allen, Hearings Coordinator, Bureau of

Ri ght - of - Way, NHDOT

Ronal d Kl ei ner, PE, Senior Project Engineer, Bureau of
Bri dge Desi gn, NHDOT

Brandon Loiselle, GW
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CHAl RMAN MERKT: (Good eveni ng, everyone.
| call this hearing for Nottingham project
nunber 40612 to order at 6:00 p.m on Thursday,
March 21, 2024. | am Richard Merkt, chairmn
of this conm ssion appointed by the governor
and executive council. Ray Chadw ck, to ny
|l eft, and Terry -- Terence Pfaff, to ny right,
are al so nmenbers of this comm ssion. This
hearing is held according to RSA 230: 14 and the
Surface Transportation and Uni form Rel ocati on
Assi stance Act of 1987. And, as Paul noted, we
are recording it.

Thi s hearing neans to gather comments from
the public, hear evidence of the project's
econom ¢, environnental, and social effects and
its consistency with the goals and objectives
of planni ng undertaken by the Departnent of
Transportation. Based upon all infornmation
provided, it is the comm ssion's responsibility
to determne if the project should go forward
as proposed. Therefore, all individuals who
want to nmake requests or suggestions nust do so

during the hearing.
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W will hear several presentations
tonight. First, I wll ask Jason Trenbl ay, the
proj ect manager fromthe Departnent of
Transportation, to introduce the project and
the people who will be speaking tonight. After
their presentations, | will open the floor to
t hose who wi sh to address the conmm ssion.

| now turn the hearing over to NHDOT
Proj ect Manager Jason Trenbl ay.

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: Thank you,
Chai r person Merkt.

Menbers of the commi ssion, |adies and
gent| enmen, good evening. M nane is
Jason Trenblay. | amthe project nmanager for
this project, and it is ny pleasure to be here
this evening on behalf of the New Hanpshire
Departnment of Transportation. Tonight's
neeting is a public hearing to present the
preferred alternative for the replacenent of
the bridge on NH 152 in the Town of Nottingham
over the North River.

First, I would like to introduce tonight's

presenters: Tom Levins, with the Departnent's
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consultant, GW; Rebecca Martin, wth New
Hanpshi re DOT Bureau of Environnent; and

Adam Smth, with the New Hanpshire DOT Bureau
of R ght-of-Way. Additional project team
nmenbers are Ron Kleiner with the New Hanpshire
DOT and Brandon Loiselle fromGw. | would
also like to thank Emly Allen, hearings

coordi nator, and the team present tonight from
the Bureau of R ght-of-Way for their assistance
with this hearing.

W will try to be as succinct as possible
in presenting the project information and
anticipate our presentation wll take about
30 mnutes. Follow ng the presentati on,

Chai rperson Merkt will open the floor for your
comrents and questions for the record.

Toni ght, we are presenting a project to
replace the concrete jack arch bridge carrying
NH 152 over the North R ver, with associ ated
roadwork. The project is in the State's
10- Year Transportation |Inprovenent Plan for
funding in Fiscal Year 2025, and the bridge is
nunber 69 on the 2022 State Red List Priority.
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This project has been reviewed with public
officials and the public in February and
Novenber of 2021 as well as January of 2024.
W' ve received input at these neetings and
adj usted our design noving forward.

The bridge is located on NH 152 in
Not t i ngham approximately 6.0 mles north of the
Intersection with NH 125 and approximately 3.3
mles south of the intersection with US 4. The
proj ect begins on NH 152 approximately 330 feet
south of the bridge over the North River and
extends northerly across the bridge
approxi mately 600 feet.

The purpose of the project is to correct
the structurally deficient jack arch bridge.
The need for the project is denonstrated by the
deteriorated condition of the bridge, which
I ncl udes cracking and | eaki ng of the deck and
rusting of the piles.

Thank you, Emly.

I n devel oping the preferred alternative,
we attenpted to limt, as nmuch as practicabl e,

the inpacts to private property, historic
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properties, and natural resources within the
project limts.

| now ask Tom Levins, fromthe NHDOT
Design Team to explain the plan that you see
on the TV and present the details of the
proposed | ayout .

Tom . .

MR. TOM LEVINS: Thank you, Jason.

Wl conme, audience. To start off, the
existing bridge details: It was constructed in
1925. It was widened in 1970. The existing
bridge is a 17-foot clear span, and the steel
beans and concrete jack arch deck, as Jason
nmenti oned, and a 29-foot roadway w dth and
about 3,300 vehicles per day. And it's been
added to the Red List in 2012.

To get on the Red List, one or nore of the
bri dge el enents nust have a condition rating of
4, which is "poor or worse," and the
substructure on this bridge has a condition
rating of 3, which is serious. So that's why
it's such a priority on the |ist.

The purpose is to replace the bridge over
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the North River due to the structural
deficiencies, as nentioned, associated with the
bri dge substructure. And, also, the hydraulic
opening is too snmall; it does not pass the QLO0
event. The need is denonstrated by the
deteriorated condition of the bridge
substructure and the inclusion of the bridge on
the State's Red List and the inability to pass
t hat QLOO storm event.

Here's sone of the site photos of the --
| ooki ng al ong Route 152 north and south of the
bri dge.

Here's sone photos | ooki ng upstream and
downstream of the expansive wetl ands adj acent
to the bridge on the highway.

There's sone of the photos that you can
see the bridge condition. You can see the
cracking and spalling in the concrete deck
portion in the one corner of the photo on the
right. It doesn't show up on the screen, but
down here you can see the rusted steel sheet
piling that's supporting the substructure.

So travel between the railings -- 11-foot

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
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travel | anes and 4-foot shoul ders on each side
of the center line. And there will be a 3-bar
steel bridge rail for safety concern.

This is the I egend of the col or plan
that's shown over there. And I'll show you it
on the screen, the next slide.

The yell ow represents the travel way --

the travel |anes -- the proposed roadway. The
shoulder is a -- let's see -- it's a gray --
it'"s a brown-ish yellow color. It shows the

4-foot shoulders. And the orange is for access
points, but there is no access point. And the
proposed bridge is in the dark red col or.
That's about all we have for that. And,
actually, the light green is the slope work
that's showmn. And the blue is, obviously, the
river.

Here is the larger picture of the hearing
pl ans over there. Also shown on this one is
the profile. You can see the yellow of the
proposed roadway grade is raising the roadway
up a little bit above the existing road. That

wi |l help, obviously, for the hydraulic
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concerns al so.

This is the bridge section, 30 feet
between the rails, as nentioned before. The
concrete framng is shown. This is the
| ongi tudi nal bridge section along the profile.
The -- showing the [imts of the riprap where
that light green is below the bridge structure.
And you can see the horizontal spot where the
wldlife path is up here. That's about 5-feet
wide, soit's -- and it's going to be above the
normal water conditions so wildlife will be
able to traverse through.

And, Rebecca, will you able to explain a
little bit nore on that -- of what type of
animals it is?

M5. REBECCA MARTIN. The resources --
natural resources?

MR TOM LEVINS: Yeah

MS. REBECCA MARTI N Yep.

MR TOM LEVINS: Thank you.

And this is a cross-section of the roadway
section. And you can see the yellow for the

travel way and the brownish yellow for the

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
1-800-600-1000



© 00 N O o b~ W N P

N N NN B P R R R R R R R
W N P O © 0 N O U M W N B O

TRANSCRIPTION

12

shoul ders and the |ight green show ng the sl ope
wor k. Sonme of the slope work will go outside
the existing right-of-way onto private
properties, so we wll be required to have
easenents for that work. And the Ri ght-of-Wy
Bureau will be, as well, negotiating with the
property owners to get those easenents.

This is the southwest corner. There's a
tenporary sl ope easenent and a channel
easenent. The channel easenent is required for
the riprap that goes under the bridge as shown.
There's sone stone depiction shown in that
area. And the reason for the stone is to
protect the bridge fromfuture scour and
erosion. The channel easenents are pernanent,
so the NHDOT will have access to those with
| ocations for future repairs or nmaintenance as
required.

This is the northwest corner with, also,
channel easenent and sl ope easenents.

Sout heast corner -- sane thing.

Nort heast corner -- simlar requirenents

for that parcel also.
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|f -- the maintenance of traffic with the
selected alternative -- it's an accel erated
bri dge construction with the bridge cl osure.
The detour, it will be traffic using Route 152,
125, and US 4. The total detour |ength al ong
Route 125 and Route 4 is about 9.3 mles. And
"Il explain that better on the next slide. W
antici pate construction duration about one
season, but the closure tine is about 28 days
that we estinate.

This is the map of the detour. |It's 11.5
mles total when you get to the point of 125,
and then go on to Route 4 to get to that
western end of Route 152. And there's about
2.2 mles' difference between going up 152 or
going the | oop detour. W estinmate the tine
wi || be about the sane because of the higher
speeds all owed on Route 4 and 125. And the
detour wll be signed at each end.

Then 125 here, you won't be able to go --
it wll say "road closed to through traffic.”
Then we'll send themthat way, sane as it --

this end. If you want to go down that way,

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
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they won't be able to go through 125. They'l|
be directed to Route 4 to take 125.

The costs will be approximately
$1.6 mllion estimated right now |It's funded
by -- oh -- Senate Bill 367. And it's all
State funded. No Town funds are required for
this project.

The next steps would be the finding of
necessity. Once we've received that, we'll
begin the right-of-way acquisition process this
spring. The project advertises in Cctober of
this year, and construction wll begin next
spring, early summer. And then the detour
| ocations will be done and the antici pated
conpletion would be in the fall of 2025. So
one full season of construction expect ed.

|"mgoing to go back a few slides. | want
to talk about the traffic control alternatives
alittle bit. The reason for selecting the
road closure -- we believe the tinme frame wll
be |l ess for the construction variation overall.
The cost will be lower. A tenporary bridge

option woul d be probably at | east one and a
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half tinmes the cost, and it woul d i npact
private property and natural resources nuch
nore than the proposed alternative.

And phase construction isn't really
possible for the type of substructure that's
there now. There's a stone nmasonry
substructure. To do that, half the tinme -- the
safety and stability of the existing structure,
when you're taking it apart to try to do it,
half of the tine, it wouldn't work.

And even if you could do it, the cost
wr ote probably double. And it would take --
like, it mght take two construction seasons to
conpl ete doing the base construction. That's

the main reason why the road closure option was

sel ect ed.

Now I'Il turn it back to -- that's the end
of my presentation. I'll turn it back to
Jason.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Thank you, Tom
As part of our evaluation of any project,
t he Departnent nust consider and docunent the

envi ronnent al inpacts of our proposed actions.
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At this tinme, Rebecca Martin, fromthe New
Hanpshi re DOT Bureau of Environnment, wl|
provide a summary of the environnental aspects
of the project.

Rebecca. ..

M5. REBECCA MARTIN. Thanks, Jason.

Good eveni ng, nenbers of the conm ssion,
| adi es and gentlenen. Pursuant to the National
Envi ronnmental Policy Act, the Departnent and
the Departnent's consultant, GW, has eval uated
the alternatives to the proposed project and
the inpacts to the surroundi ng natural,
cul tural, and soci oeconom c resources.

The Departnent has coordi nated with
federal and state environnental agencies,
i ncluding the Arny Corps of Engineers, the U S.
Fish and Wldlife Service, the Environnental
Protecti on Agency, the New Hanpshire Depart nment
of Environnental Services, the New Hanpshire
Fish and Gane Departnent. [In addition, input
was sought fromtown officials as well as
concerned citizens.

After evaluation of the infornmation

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
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gat hered, an environnental docunent was
prepared, which is available tonight. The
followng is a sunmary of sone of the

i nformati on contained within the docunent.

The proposed project wll require inpacts
to wetlands and a stream under the jurisdiction
of the New Hanpshire Departnent of
Envi ronnmental Services and the Arny Corps of
Engi neers. The wetlands in the project area
are considered Priority Resource Areas, as they
are wetlands within the floodplain. The
Departnent will continue to coordinate with the
appropriate agencies to ensure that the wetl and
I npacts are mnimzed to the extent possible,
any necessary mtigation is provided, and all
permts are secured prior to construction.

An endangered species review |ist has been
conpl eted and has indicated that State |isted
t hreat ened and endangered speci es and one
federally listed species may be present within
the area of the project. Coordination with the
NH Fi sh and Gane Departnent is ongoing for

protected turtles and a snake species that may

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
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occur in the project area. Conservation
nmeasures W ll be selected for the project to
reduce the potential to inpact the protected
species that nmay occur in the project area and
will be incorporated into the project's final
desi gn.

Consultation with the U S. Fish and
Wldlife Service is conplete for the project's
potential effects on the federally listed
northern | ong-eared bat. As the project does
not occur in an area of the state where the bat
Is predicted to occupy, the project has been
determ ned to have no effect on the northern
| ong- eared bat.

Pursuant to Section 106 of the National
Hi storic Preservation Act, the Departnent, in
coordination with the U S. Arny Corps of
Engi neers and the NH Division of Historical
Resources, nust consider the inpacts of the
project on any historical resources. The
proj ect has been reviewed for potenti al
hi storic resources, which can include any

structures over 50 years old, as well as

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
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archeol ogi cal sites. The existing bridge
itself is not eligible for the National
Regi ster of historic places. Coordination
between the U S. Arny Corps of Engineers, the
NH Di vi sion of Hi storical Resources, and the
Departnent of Transportations indicates that no
hi storic properties are expected to be affected
by the proposed project.
| nvasi ve plants are present in the project
area and they will be managed duri ng
construction in accordance with the
Departnent's Best Managenent Practices for the
Control of Invasive Plant Species nanual.
Statew de anal ytical data that's been
coll ected by the Departnent of Transportation,
as well as nationw de information, indicates
t hat roadside soils associated with
transportation corridors comonly contain
nmetal s and Pol ycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons at
concentrati ons above background |evels. These
soils are considered by the Departnent to be
Limted Reuse Soils. A Soils Managenent Pl an

Is planned for managenent of Limted Reuse

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
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Soils in the project area during construction.

During construction, best managenent
practices will be utilized in accordance with
the NH Stormvat er Manual to prevent erosion and
protect water quality.

The project is not expected to result in
any neani ngful changes in traffic vol une,
vehicle mx, or any other factor that would
cause an increase in noise inpacts or which
woul d adversely affect air quality. This
project is not expected to cause a noticeable
change in noise | evels once construction is
conpl et ed.

| npacts wll be necessary for the project
wi thin the floodpl ain; however, the project
woul d not result in nore than a nomnal rise in
the base flood el evation, and fl oodpl ain val ues
woul d not be di m nished by the project.

Thank you.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Thank you, Rebecca.

As this project wll involve acquiring
easenents, Adam Smth, with the NHDOT Bureau of

Ri ght-of -\Way, wi |l describe the process of
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acquiring the necessary right-of-way for the
proj ect.

Adam ..

MR. ADAM SM TH:  Thank you, Jason.

Menbers of the conmm ssion, |adies and
gentl enen, before we go into the right-of-way
procedures for the project, I'd like to nention
that we have with us tonight copies of a
bookl et entitled "Public Projects and Your
Property."” These are in the back of the room
right at the entrance, if you do want a copy of
those. The booklet is especially useful for
property owners inpacted by this proposed
proj ect.

|f after reviewing the information and
testinony presented at the hearing, the
comm ssion finds necessity for the proposed
| ayout, several things wll happen. First,
wi th approval to proceed with the design of the
project, the Departnment will be preparing
apprai sals for each of the properties inpacted
by the proposed construction you see on the

pl ans toni ght.
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A staff appraiser fromthe Departnment or a
fee appraiser hired froma private industry
wi Il contact each owner to appraise their
property. The appraisals wll reflect the fair
mar ket val ue of the property rights needed to
conpl ete construction. Prior to starting
negoti ati ons, the appraisals are revi ewed
separately to see that all appraisals are
accurate and have taken into account all
appl i cabl e approaches to val ue.

The value in the reviewed and finalized
appraisal wll be the offer of conpensation
used by the Departnent as a basis for
negoti ations. A right-of-way agent fromthe
Departnent will visit each property owner to
di scuss each acquisition separately. This is
an opportunity for owners to ask questions and
to bring up their concerns. |If the property
owner accepts the offer, conveyance docunents
are prepared, and ownership is transferred to
the State. And conpensation is provided to the
property owner.

| f negotiations between the owner and the
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Departnent fail, the matter will be filed with
t he New Hanpshire Board of Tax and Land
Appeal s, where the ower will have an
opportunity to argue for additional
conpensation. Please understand this can be
done with or without an attorney. And after
the board issues its ruling on just
conpensation, the party can appeal the board's
decision to the Superior Court if they are

unsati sfi ed.

That's all | have.
MR. JASON TREMBLAY: Thank you, Adam
Followi ng this public hearing, we will be

posting the plan fromtonight's neeting. The
transcript, including testinmony, will also be
posted once is it nade available. Please check
the website for other links to public
docunent s.

If there is support for the proposal and
the comm ssion finds for the |ayout, the
Departnent will nove into right-of-way
acquisition. This includes finalization of

detail ed contract plans, purchase of needed
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property rights, and environnental permtting.
We anticipate the contract to be ready to
Advertise for Bids in the fall of 2024. This
will allow for construction in 2025.

The Departnent's current cost estinmate for
construction is approximately $1.6 mllion.
This coul d change as the construction plans are
finalized. Funding for this project wll be
100 percent State funds. No Town funds will be
required.

W are prepared to answer questions this
evening to allow the comm ssion to convene the
Fi ndi ng of Necessity tonight.

Chai rperson Merkt, this concl udes the
Departnent's formal presentation for the
proposed bridge replacenent over the
North River in the Town of Nottingham

| want to thank all of you for your tine
this evening.

At this tinme | respectfully request,
Chai r person Merkt, the commssion find in favor
of the necessity for the |layout of the project

as presented here this evening. Thank you for
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your consi deration.

Wth that I will turn the neeting back
over to Chairperson MerKkt.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Sorry. Just a quick
guesti on.

You nentioned you were going to tal k about
the wildlife and what critters use -- that go
on the bridge and stuff.

| didn't hear that part; what use is it?

M5. REBECCA MARTIN. So this is within
what -- the New Hanpshire Fish and Gane has put
together a mapping tool that predicts wildlife
corridors and habitat wal ks.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:.  Yep.

M5. REBECCA MARTIN. So we do have rare
speci es occurrences that -- and we're hoping
that those rare species could take advantage of
the shelf. And it also is within the corridor.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF: So | arger ani mals
could use it?

M5. REBECCA MARTIN. Yep, both. And,
ideally, it would be available for any native

conmon species as well.
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CHAl RVAN MERKT: Humans can use it?

M5. REBECCA MARTIN:. (I naudible).

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Thank you,

M. Chai r man.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: | will now open the
hearing for testinony, but before we go hearing
comments or questions or concerns fromthe
public, are there any elected officials who

want to be heard or who are here with us this

eveni ng?
Seei ng none -- oh. Yeah.
MR TIMDABRIEG | don't want to to be

heard, but (i naudible).

MR PAUL CODDI NGTON:  Wio are you, though,
for the record?

MR TIMDABRIEQO |'mon the Select --
serve on the Sel ect Board.

MR. PAUL CODDI NGTON: | nean, who woul d
you - -

MR TIMDABRIEG So Ti m Dabrieo, yeah.

MR. PAUL CODDI NGTON:  Thank you.

MR, STEVE WELCH: [|'ll speak on that. [|'m

St eve Wel ch, Board of Sel ect man, too.
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It'd be nice if we could have a tenporary
bridge put in. | know fire safety, police
safety is -- is very concerned about that road
cl osure to protect our citizens in case of
energency. So if there was any way we could do
that, that woul d be nuch appreci at ed.

| know there's a cost factor that's
probably associated with it, and |I don't know
If it's doable. But, by God, it'd be awful
nice if we could get that done so we didn't
have to cl ose that road dowmn. W've got a
little dirt road over here that they can use.
It's in not great repair. The added traffic on
that road would put quite a burden on the town.

CHAl RMVAN MERKT: Do you know the response
time difference?

MR, STEVE WELCH: | think | should turn
that over to the Chief, maybe.

CH EF WOODMAN:  Absolutely. | nean, do
you want ne to cut you off? Do you have nore?

MR. STEVE WELCH. No. | think I've said
what | needed to say.

CH EF WOODMAN:  Ckay. | appreciate it,
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St eve.

' m Fawmn Wbodman, the Chief of Police of
Notti ngham Thank you all for being here.
appreci ate the comm ssion and, certainly, Jason
and his team | kind of cane down on them a
little hard at a public neeting the other
night. | want to just kind of -- | don't want
to take up everybody's tine. | think --
especially, my citizens know how | feel about
this -- obviously, life safety is nunber one
for me.

When | first becane chief of police in
2021, we had a quick Zoom neeting wth DOT
expl ai ni ng what was going to happen. And, of
course, back then, probably not knowi ng a | ot
of information, they had offered three
al ternatives that kept the road open. |I'm
obvi ously, understandi ng now that that can't
happen for many reasons; right -- noney, other
structural problens, engineers -- that | don't
under st and, obviously, as a police officer.

But that section of roadway -- and |'d

li ke to know statistics. | know that they did,
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i ke, probably, a vehicle count during a tine
frame. |1'd like to know -- that is a very
heavily traveled road. Wen you cut down that
bri dge, you cut down kind of like the Route 4
corridor. Quite frankly, you're cutting down a
maj or segnent of ny population that | have to
respond to for the safety of ny fire chief.

He, probably, would reiterate that.

What we do in Nottinghamis we use
Route 152 to get to Route 4 on the north and
west side. So if | have any call for
service -- fatality, notor vehicle accident,
any call for service -- |I'mgoing down 152 and
" musing Freeman Hall Road. Freenman Hall Road
Is a very inportant road in Nottingham It's a
cut-through to many things.

If you're telling ne, for response tine --
if I have to go down Priest Road, right, which
iIs primarily a dirt gravel roadway, going at
code, ny response tine is going to be
significantly delayed. And | don't know the
exact tinme, but it will be delayed. Because it

al so depends on where we are, as an officer, in
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the towmn. And just |ike everybody else -- just
like you are -- we're short-staffed.

So it's been brought up, "Well, let's rely
on nutual aid." Mitual aid is short-staffed
too. So Northwood and Barrington and Lee are
not going to be able to get to a life safety
thing, and nore -- quicker than we can. | say
t hat whol eheartedly. |'mvery passionate,
obvi ously, as the chief of police, for life
safety. |I'malso a resident of the town. And
| understand the dynamc that this will cause;
it's going to be huge.

| wish that the highway director was here
to say "yes, the roadway," and we're -- and we
understand that there's going to be signs. And
we hope that nost of the population, right, for
their business, they're going to be using 125,
and they're going to be going the route.

However, you are going to have those fol ks
that, obviously, just live in town, and they're
going to followtheir GPS. And they're going
to use that Priest Road area. It's going to

put a lot of wear and tear on that road, and
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it's going to be very financial for the Town,
and it's going to nmake the road really bad.
It's going to cost a | ot a noney.

So ny piece, as it's always been said --

and Jason knows, and |'ve sent several

emails -- is if there are other alternatives
that you can do, | really request that you try
to do that.

That's ny thoughts.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: What | would like to do
Is ask if anyone fromthe Departnent would care
to respond to sone of the issues and questions
rai sed.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: | can respond to
t hat .

Wth Dave Scott, the project nanager, we
had correspondence with Chief Wodman. And
within that email, the reason for the tenporary
bridge, like Tomsaid, it could be one and a
half to two tines nore expensive. And
under st and everybody's budgets and cost. The
Depart nent has a budget as well.

It would inpact nore wetland area, so we
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have to mnim ze our inpacts to the wetl ands as
well. So that was -- we've | ooked at that, and
that was the reasons for that being not chosen.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: Ri ght.

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: And the structural
integrity of the existing bridge -- it's laid
stone. |It's not like it's poured concrete. So
if we drive sheeting down the center of the
road to phase the traffic, it could disturb
that -- whol e stones, and then you could | ose
the whole bridge. So fromthat perspective,
it's not our typical type of bridge that we

renove. So with the phasing, that's -- was
safety, as well, in making sure we keep it
open.

So the 28-day closure was trying to
mnimze the time that the road was cl osed,
mnimze the inpacts, and mnim ze the costs.

CH EF WOODVAN:  So the tine franme -- do we
have dates for that?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Wen we get a
contractor on board, they will come up wth a

schedul e. | don't know if Tom nentioned, but

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
1-800-600-1000



© 00 N O o b~ W N P

N N NN B P R R R R R R R
W N P O © 0 N O U M W N B O

TRANSCRIPTION

33

with road closures, we'll typically do themin
the summertinme so the school bus routes don't
get inpacted as badly if there's sumer school
and whatnot. But, typically, it's in the
sumertine. It wouldn't be during nud season.
| know that is, in Nottingham-- the dirt road.

So, typically, once we get the contract on
board -- which could be three nonths after we
advertise, so it may not be until late this
year, early next year -- they cone up with the
schedul es. And then, |ike any schedul e,
soneti nmes sonet hing coul d change, but they --
we woul d give, typically, a couple of weeks'
notice with dynam c nessage signs that the
road's closing, and we put out press rel eases
to make the public aware that the road's
cl osing. The signs get put up and get cover ed.
And then once the detour is in place, they get
uncover ed.

We can -- like you had nentioned, we'll
put on Freeman Hall Road and Priest Road that
"l ocal traffic only," and try to mnimze the

traffic that goes down those roads.
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CH EF WOODVAN:  Ckay.
| just want to be on record saying that |
woul dn't recommend shutting the road down. |

have to answer to ny citizens. And if you live

on the other side of that road -- which | know
many of you here in the roomdo -- | want to be
able to get to you. | know that that's very

I nportant, and | don't want to take any tine
getting there.

Qur town is big enough. | can't
articulate how much cutting down that corridor
to the population is going to deprive us of.

So that's all 1 have.

Thank you. | appreciate it.

CHAl RMAN MERKT:  Thank you, Chi ef.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Thank you for your
coments, and it wll be part of the testinony.

CHAI RVAN MERKT:  Conm ssi oner ?

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Yes.

It's nmentioned that the road closure would
be 28 days with this alternative. | assune the
ot her alternatives have sone |evel of road

cl osures, perhaps, intermttently required.
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Do you have an estimte of what they m ght
be?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: W th other
alternatives, sonetinmes we have to alternate
one-way traffic. The phased constructi on woul d
actually have the one-way, but they would --
soneti mes when they set up sone stuff, they
woul d have to naybe have fl aggers on the side
to alternate traffic through. And it m ght be
paused for sone delay -- not a closure.

And the tenporary bridge, that would al so
require, approximtely, sone alternating
one-way when they're trying to build the path
back to the -- fromthe tenporary detour
of fline back to the -- 152.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Thank you.

CHAI RVAN MERKT:  Comm ssi oner Pfaff?

COMM SSI ONER PFAFF:  Thanks.

So -- but the description of the
underlying structure doesn't lend itself to
splitting the bridge and doling it out, anyway,
or to attenpt it, it sounds like. It also

sounds like it encroaches greatly on the
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environnental inpacts of the project.

And the 28-day period is, hopefully, in
the summer when the roads aren't going to be
crowded; right?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF: Al right. Thanks.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: Al right. Let's nove
al ong to our other individuals.

Davi d Foster, sir,

| will now open the neeting to anyone el se
who wi shes to speak. Having called your nane,
| ask you to cone to the m crophone, or at
| east to the dais, to state your nane and
address for the record and nake your statenent.

MR. DAVID FOSTER: David Foster. | live
I n Northwood about four mles fromhere on
Lucas Pond Road.

| f you | ook at possibly building the
per manent bridge upstream or downstream of the
existing and maintaining traffic on the
exi sting structure, that way, you could keep
the road open and build the new bridge.

Was that investigated?
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MR. JASON TREMBLAY: That was not
I nvestigated. But with the environnental
I npacts of the new bridge, it would be that
we're still trying to mnimze the inpacts.

MR. DAVID FOSTER: Ckay.

Anot her question | have is you had a --
one of the views with a profile grade |ine.
Coul d you bring that up again?

How nuch are you raising the road at the
river? Because | have sone friends who fish,
and they said they can't get under the bridge
at the present tinme with a canoe.

So wll the underside of the new bridge be
hi gher than the underside of the old bridge?

MR TOM LEVINS: Yes.

MR. DAVI D FOSTER By how nuch?

MR TOMLEVINS: It would be a couple of
feet, | believe.

MR DAVID FOSTER:  Ckay.

And the -- right now -- did you call it a
shelf for the wildlife? So would a fisherman
be able to wal k al ong that shelf and cross from

one side of the road to the other w thout
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having to cross the road -- they could cross it
underneath the bridge -- and would they bunp
their head on the bottom of bridge?

MR TOM LEVINS: | believe a 6-foot-tall
person woul d not be able to stand fully and
wal k under there. M ght be able to crouch down
and get under it.

MR. DAVID FOSTER: Yeah. All right.

MR TOM LEVINS: It's not made -- it's not
made for human beings to be wal ki ng underneath
t here.

MR. DAVID FOSTER: Yeah. Well, they --
there are fishernmen, you know. So, | guess, it
woul d be an inproved situation for fishernen
because of the shelf, but not by a |ot.

Thank you.

CHAI RVMAN MERKT: W I |iam Her man?

MR, BILL ROY: Sane thing --

CHAIl RMAN MERKT: Sorry, sir, if you would
just state your nane and your address.

MR, BILL ROY: Sure. | go by Bill Roy.
"' m a business adm nistrator for the school

district, so 130 Stage Road.
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We're just asking to nake sure it's not
happeni ng during schooltine. | know you said
that, earlier, you don't have dates. | know
It's going to be in the sumrer of 2025. But
there's a ot of students who, all
around this -- they're around this town -- but
this is the road, and it's very close to the
bridge. So if people are going around it, it
coul d del ay school and have a big inpact.
Those students are on the bus for nmaybe an hour
a day as it is. W don't want themon there
any | onger.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: That is during the
regul ar school year?

MR, BILL ROY: Regular school year, yes.

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: Ckay.

The 28-day closure, we wll put |anguage
In the contract docunents that it can't take
pl ace fromthe end of school to the end of
school .

And | forget the nanme of the
superintendent. She had talked to ne at the

| ast neeting we had. And |'ve corresponded
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wi th her and nade her aware of that issue.

MR. BILL ROY: Dr. Hasbrook.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Yes, thank you.

MR, BILL ROY: Ckay.

Thank you. That's it.

CHAl RMAN MERKT: Thank you very nuch. And
if I nmurder this nane, | apol ogi ze in advance.

Ski p Sever ance.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Yep. Good job.

My nane is Skip Severance. | live up the
road here on 340 Stage Road, Nottingham | got
several questions fromwhat | heard tonight.
Let's see.

Dave asked if it was going to be higher.
It is higher. Mybe not as high as sonebody to
wal k under, but it seens |ike both sides are
going to be a different height.

MR. TOM LEVINS: Yes. Yeah, the wildlife
path w |l be higher.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Ckay.

|s the right-of-way |arger than it was
before? | nean, did you have to acquire -- or

woul d you be acquiring, or whatever?
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MR. JASON TREMBLAY: There are, on all
four quadrants -- and you can see the -- sorry,
"' m pointing at the screen.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: OCh. No, that's okay.

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: The channel easenent
Is on both sides of the bridge. That's to put
in the stone, the riprap. It's real big stone.
But, like Tomnentioned, it helps with the
scour protection and the function of the
bridge, to stay in place.

And then because of the slope lines, that
dashed blue line there -- it may be difficult
to see -- but that's our existing right-of-way.
So the slope lines -- because when we raise the
grade -- on that picture, the slopes cone out a
little further. And it goes outside of our
right-of-way, so that's why we need to acquire
t hose easenents.

MR SKI P SEVERANCE: Gkay. Al right.

So, | guess, the question | have is, in
that regard, the Mdther's Day floods that we
had i solated the center part of town from where

we were. The water was on either side of the
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roadway. One-hundred year storm-- good.
Ckay.

How wi Il that work with the way this
bridge is going to be? Simlar kind of a
thing? | nmean, it didn't wash it out, but...

MR. TOM LEVINS: The hydraulic analysis
shows that the QLOO stormw || pass through the
structure.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Ckay.

Easier than last tinme?

MR. TOM LEVINS: Yes, nuch easier.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Ckay.

It appears that the shoul der on the road
used to be 3'6". Nowit's going to, |ike,

4 feet. |Is that the sane width of the bike
path? | didn't know a way to get that
I nformati on.

MR TOM LEVINS: A bike path is nornmally
5 feet.

MR SKI P SEVERANCE: Five feet. Ckay.
Because there were a lot of -- especially
during the summer, there's a lot of cycling

groups that cone through in both ways. And |
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don't know who they are. | did call the

G anite State Wieelers -- | don't know if
there's anybody here tonight fromthem who's
going to get the word out about this -- but
their group is not the bicycling group that
goes through here, so if nust be some Seacoast
t hi ng.

Anyway, but it will be wider than it was.
kay. Right.

In regards to GPS, who identifies a fact
in the GPS world that the road is closed? |Is
t hat you guys?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: |'m going to answer
this "yes," and "no."

W -- within the contract docunments, when
the contractor's ready to close the road, they
reach out to our TSMO group. And then they put
that information in the New Hanpshire 511 that
the road is closed. And that information gets
di ssem nated to Waze, Google, all those
different driving apps.

So when the road is closed, they've got to

| et us know, and we get it out that way. So we
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start the process, but it then goes through
ot her people to nake others aware that the road
Is cl osed.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Right.

Is it done just based on the closure dates
or the warnings that go up or anything?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: It would be based off
of the day they actually -- when they' re ready
to do it, they have to call and say, "Ckay.
We're going to be closing the road tonorrow. "

So it's -- they don't put the dates,
because then -- if, for sone reason, the
weat her changes and they have to wait a couple
days to do the 28-day closure in that
summertinme outside-of-school wi ndow. So they
want to nake sure they nake that phone call the
day they're ready to -- or I'mnot sure if it's
the day before, but --

MR SKI P SEVERANCE: That's okay.

MR. JASON TREMBLAY:
of that magi c happens out of the field, yes.

MR SKIP SEVERANCE: | nean, if we can get

- it's, yeah. Sone

nost of traffic away --
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MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Correct. That's our
I ntent.

MR, PAUL CODDI NGTON:  Who's TSMO, and what
Is their role in this, please?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: That's a great --
that's why | | ove acronynmns.

Because Transportation --

MR, PAUL CODDI NGTON:  Saf ety Managenent
Ofice.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Probably. They're
the ones that | recall, but | apologize for not
know ng this answer.

(Cross-tal k.)

MR JASON TREMBLAY: But they take 911
calls. So all that stuff -- they've got access
to all the canmeras that we have on the poles,
so they can see the accidents and see what
traffic's going on. So they have access to all
that traffic information.

And this is a big-level picture. | nean,
what they do today, |I'mnot part of. But when
we | et them know the road's cl osed, they take

that information and give it to the correct
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peopl e.

MR SKI P SEVERANCE: kay. | was just
hoping it wasn't the Town doing that. That's
al | .

MR JASON TREMBLAY: No.

MR, SKI P SEVERANCE: W woul dn't be doi ng
t hat ?

MR. TOM LEVI NS: It's a State route.
MR, PAUL CODDI NGTON: TSMO

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: | do have your email
| could give you that acronym - -

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: That's okay. |'m
good with that. | used to work for the Navy.

| mgood with acronyns.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Thanks for your
under st andi ng, sir.

MR, PAUL CODDI NGTON:  The USN?

MR, SKI P SEVERANCE: Sorry.

Rebecca, what was that bat you were
tal ki ng about? The northern...

M5. REBECCA MARTIN: Yeah. The northern
| ong- eared bat.

MR, SKI P SEVERANCE: Long-eared?

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
1-800-600-1000



© 00 N O o b~ W N P

N N NN B P R R R R R R R
W N P O © 0 N O U M W N B O

TRANSCRIPTION

47

MS. REBECCA MARTIN:  Yep. It's a

federally listed species that we do have here

i n New Hanpshire. Just the predicted occupancy

Isn't expected to include the project area.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Yeah. Ckay. Cool.
| think that's it for ne.

Thank you very nuch.

MR. PAUL CODDI NGTON:  And, Jason, | had
sonme hel p.

TSMO. Traffic systens nmanagenent and
oper ati ons.

MR. SKI P SEVERANCE: Thank you.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK: | have a questi on.
This is for Jason or a nenber of the team

| understand the span of this bridge wll
be increased fromwhat it is now And what it
I's now broke the water fromthe water I|ine.

Can you conmment on how nmuch those
expansi ons are, and the benefits that gets to
the potential for flooding in major storns?

MR. TOM LEVINS: The existing bridge
opening is 17-feet -- the span. The new

proposed bridge opening is 30 feet. The area
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underneath -- | don't have the exact nunbers,
but, like | said, it's going to be raised. The
|l ow cord is the bottomof the structure. The
other side is going to be at |east 2 feet

hi gher than the existing one.

It may be a little bit nore. | don't have
the exact nunbers. But the hydraulic opening
Is significantly increased, so the water w |
pass through a | ot quicker. W're not
expecting any overtoppi ng of the road during
t he QLO0 event.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Thank you.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF.  So when you did those
cal culations, did you utilize the experience of
the previous stormthat did overrun it to do an
estimate of the flowage through it?

MR TOM LEVINS: We did not. Qur records
fromthe DOT said that water has never gone
over the road.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Okay.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: If | could just stop this
for a nonent, because we're in the testinony

section. W have taken the testinony from
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board officials who signed up.

Are there any other individuals present
who would like to offer testinony this evening?

MR TIMDABRIEO | said | wasn't going to
speak.

CHAl RMVAN MERKT: Pl ease cone forward and
identify yourself and your hone address.

MR. TIM DABRIEGC. Tim Dabrieo, 75 Freeman
Hal | Road.

And, | guess, | -- we asked the sane
gquestion at the Sel ectman neeting that you cane
to: Wiat was done for research for other
alternatives? And, | guess, you were going to
go back to the draw ng board to find out and
give nore details, as Fawn had asked, about
what the inpact was and the cost. And it
sounds |i ke cost m ght be nore of the inpact
t hat was consi dered when it cones to cl osing
the road for that period tinme -- was nunber
one.

And then ny other question was Chief had
mentioned Priest Road, which is the road that's

going to be the detour. A large portion of
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that is gravel and dirt. Wuld the State
consi der doing sonething -- it's not in great
condition, especially for our fire trucks and
police vehicles to be traveling up to respond
to calls.

|s there sonething that the State woul d do
to make i nprovenents on that stretch of road in
order to nmake it nore accessible for those
vehi cl es?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Your first
guestion -- yes, the cost, but also
environnental inpacts. If we put a tenporary
bridge off to the side, there are nore
environnental inpacts. So those are the
reasons for that.

In regards to Town roads and the State,
the policy is not to upgrade the Town roads
for -- if we're assigning -- we assign the
State route detour, and that's where we're
expecting vehicles to go.

The locals, if they choose to take
Priest Road, we can put up signs up there that

say "Local Traffic Only." The thought -- and |
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know Pol i ce Chief Woodman doesn't have staff,
but if people wanted to sit there and, |ike,
ticket people that --

MR, TIMDABRIEO Well, I'mtal king about
their vehicles. Because they're potentially
going to have to use that road for response.
VWhich they -- it's going to increase
dramatically as far as their traffic com ng up
that road for response to energencies on the
ot her side of that bridge.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: So, yes, the State
does not upgrade Town roads. W have a State
route detour.

MR TIMDABRIEGO So | would kindly
request that you consider sonething for that.
Qur Town right nowis set on a default budget
fromlast year. And we have, |iKke,
negati ve- $25, 000 for road nmi nt enance.

So if there's sonething the State woul d

consider doing to inprove that section of road,

the Town -- | don't want to speak for the Town
as a Sel ect Board nenber -- as a resident of
the Town, | would appreciate it.
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Thank you.

COMM SSI ONER PFAFF:  Thank you.

Sel ect man?

MR, STEVE WELCH. No, that's it.

MR TIMDABRIEO. [|I'msorry. | was not
speaki ng on behalf of the Select Board. | just
want to clarify. (Inaudible).

CHAl RVAN MERKT:  Any ot her additional
W t nesses?

MR, JUSTIN FOGG Yeah. |'m Justin Fogg
at 87 Stevens HlI.

| want to go on the record that we don't
-- we should not close the road. Like, you're
putting people's lives -- well, you're putting
animal's lives over people's lives. They're
not going to be able to nake it through -- down
there. If you've driven down the roads, you
woul d know. Like, |I've got a 2500 GVC, and |
can barely make it up and down the road on
Stevens Hi |l because the roads here are so bad.
So you're cutting a lifeline to the town is
what you' re doi ng.

So that's all. | just want it to go on
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record.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: | woul d point out, in
fairness, | think, to the Departnent, that this
Is not all about making a replacenent bridge
for animals. | nmean, it's for safety.

| think it's a Red bridge, isn't it?

(Cross-tal k.)

MR. JUSTIN FOGG | want it on the record
t hat way.

CHAl RMAN MERKT: Ckay. I'msorry. | just
want ed - -

MR. JUSTIN FOGG Yeah -- no, |I'mjust
speaking that they're -- that's how | perceived

it, and I would like it on the record that way.
CHAI RVAN MERKT:  Thank you.
Anybody el se fromthe public who wi shes to

speak? Seei ng none -- going once, going twce
-- sold. We will close the testinony portion.
At this point, | would like to ask ny

fell ow nenbers of the commssion if they may
have any questions for the Departnent of
Transportation or GV Associates, Inc., in

connection with this project as well.
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COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Yeah.

The length, just to clarify (inaudible),
an alternative nore feasible -- that woul d
I ncrease the construction period two years nore
than likely; is that correct?

MR TOM LEVINS: Correct.

Not a two-year increase. Well, it would
actually be a two -- a two-year |ong
construction peri od.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF: Two seasons?

MR TOM LEVINS: Two seasons.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: Now we're getting back to
the testinony phase. All right.

| don't have any specific questions. |
t hi nk nost of them have been addressed pretty
wel | during the presentation and during the
guesti on- and- answer sessi on.

COW S| ONER CHADW CK: | ' ve got one.

CHAI RMAN MERKT: (I naudi bl e).

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  That's right.

You nentioned a Senate bill that
appropriated this noney; how nuch was that for?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: | don't know the
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exact anount -- all the noney we got, but it

was -- when we got the 4-cent gas tax increase
from-- | saw several years, but it's probably
been closer to six or seven years -- that noney

was fundi ng sone of these projects.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:.  This particul ar one
is $1.6 mllion; correct?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: |'msorry?
COW SSI ONER PFAFF:.  This project is
particularly for $1.6 mllion out of that pool
of nmoney that was authorized fromthe Senate

bill?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Ckay.

CHAl RMVAN MERKT: So as | understand it --
| " m pi cking up on your point -- the noney has
been appropriated -- the $1.6 mllion. [If we
go back and | ook at another thing that's going
to be nore expensive, we would have to | ook for
noney as wel |l .

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: Ckay. Thank you. All
right.
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Well, | would Iike to ask the conm ssion
menbers if they believe they now have the
information they need to deliberate and deci de
on the necessity of this project, and that
there are no unanswered questions or issues

that were not addressed to your satisfaction.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK: | m good.
CHAl RMVAN MERKT: M. Chadw ck i s good.
COMM SSI ONER PFAFF:  |' m good.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: M. Pfaff is good.
M. Merkt is al so good.

And then that concludes our February
agenda as far as this. And what we wll do now
iswe will close this hearing. W'IlIl be
closing it 6:55 p. m

And, again, | would like to thank everyone
who took the tinme to show up and to provide
your opinions. It's very valuable for us, as
comm ssioners, to hear it. | know that the
Departnment regards it as valuable to them as
well. And we'll proceed fromthat point.

So, thank you so nmuch. Meeting

adj ourned -- hearing adjourned.
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(Werefore the public neeting
was adjourned at 6:55 p.m)
CHAI RMAN MERKT: This is the second

meeting. This is a different neeting. This is

a neeting for what's called consideration of
the finding of necessity for this project.

This neeting is called to order at
6:58 p.m M nane is Richard Merkt, and | am
chair of this conm ssion appointed by the
governor and executive counsel .

Ray Chadwi ck, to ny left, and
Terence Pfaff, to ny right, are all the other
menbers of the comm ssion. This neeting is
bei ng held pursuant to RSA 230: 14 and the
Surface Transportation and Uni form Rel ocati on
Assi stance Act of 1987, and is being recorded.
This neeting is about the proposed Nottingham
Nunmber 40612 project to replace the Red List
bridge that carries Route NH 152 over the
North River.

The new bring will provide a | onger span
than the existing structure. New Hanpshire

152 road inprovenents will inprove
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approximately -- will include approximtely
600 feet of roadway w deni ng and
reconstruction. It is the comm ssion's
responsibility to determ ne, based on all

i nformation provided, if the project can go
forward as proposed.

Does the comm ssion have any questions or
comrents for the Town of Nottinghamor for the
NHDOT ?

And | woul d ask Comm ssioner Chadw ck to
start first.

COMWM SI ONER CHADW CK:  Yes, | have a
guesti on.

This is a Red Line (sic) bridge. And I'm
not totally famliar with how it achieves that
-- tell us again how a bridge becones a
Red Line bridge. Wat is that potential inpact
on the stability, short- and long-term of its
ability to continue serving as a bridge instead
of a pile of rubble on the river?

(Cross-tal k.)
MR. TOM LEVINS: No, that's fine.
In order to get on the Red List, a bridge
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has to have a -- a portion -- a section -- an
el ement of the bridge nust have a condition
rating of 4 or worse belowit. And the
substructure on this bridge has a condition
rating of 3, which is serious. The next one is
critical, 2. And when it gets to 2, it gets

cl osed.

So | cannot predict how nmuch tine it woul d
take for this structure to get to a condition
rating of 2. But it's at 3already, so that's
why it's on the priority that it's on.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  And | woul d ask how
| ong has this been a Red List bridge?

MR, TOM LEVINS: Since 2012.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So we're al ready
12 years into that status?

MR. TOM LEVINS. Yes.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: To add to Tom s Red
Listing of the bridges, when we build a new
bridge, it's rated as a 9. So it's
br and- spanki ng-new. And over tine it gets --
State bridges gets inspected every two years by

our bridge inspection teans. They |ook at the
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deck, the superstructure, the substructure --
the three basic elenments of nost of our
bridges -- and rate those. And, then, over
time, it goes down to an 8 or a 7 or a 6.

And when it gets to a 6 and a 5, we call
it our Yellow List. 1It's sort of a green to a
yellow to a red, sort of like the stop sign --
or a stoplight, sorry. And so when it gets on
the Red List, our bridge groups inspection
teans go in every six nonths to inspect it to
make sure that it's still safe for |egal |oads
and the traveling public.

But wi thout any work done on the bridge --
i ke Tom had pointed out, those steel sheetings
are deteriorating. So if they go out and
I nspect and see sonething that isn't safe,
they' Il let our existing bridge section know.
And they will then determ ne whet her the bridge
shoul d be cl osed or not.

So, ultimately, if it keeps on
deteriorating, yes, there will be a point in
time where we would have to close it, just

because it can't handle | egal |oads. And, like
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| said, it's been on the Red List since 2012.
So it's been about twelve years that it's been
I nspected every six nonths.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Are there reports
that show a continual deterioration in it, but
still within the category of where it is?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Qur bridge inspection
reports -- and | don't have one handy -- but on
the last page, it'll list all the conditions,

like, since 1981. So it shows every two years.

So you can -- it puts the latest inspection at
the top.
So you can sort of see, "Ckay. It's been

this." And then when it finally gets to the
Red List, you can see where it's happened. So
you can see where the bridge ratings have
changed. And then if we take a bridge and then
ei ther put on a new deck or replace the steel
girders, the rating goes back up because we
fixed that element. So it's no |onger on the
Red Li st.

And, typically, nost of our bridges, it's

either the deck or the steel -- the
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superstructure -- the steel girders that
deteriorate, so we can just replace the
existing deck. But in this case, the
substructure, which supports the steel girders
and the concrete deck -- that's the part that
Is deteriorating. That's difficult to fix

wi thout fixing the entire bridge.

COWM SI ONER CHADW CK:  Thank you.

CHAl RMAN MERKT:  Conm ssi oner, thank you.

COMM SSI ONER PFAFF:  So with that being
said, if this were to seek alternatives as
requested by the community -- sone of the folks
that you' ve heard tonight -- would that
| eopardi ze your funding at all for this
particul ar project?

Wuld it also -- do you have any avail abl e
funds to absorb the increase anywhere down the
road with that tineline if the bridge failed or
cane close to failing -- becane critical and it
had to be closed? |s there any energency funds
to rapidly build a bridge? (Inaudible).

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: No, understood. And

-- the funding -- | would have to go back and
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talk to our -- director of project devel opnent to
see what available funds they still have with

the SB 367. Because | believe that 4 percent

gas tax is -- we're no longer -- it's either
sunset or it has already sunset. So there is
limted noney in that.

And, |I'msorry, could you rem nd ne of the
ot her question?

COMM SSI ONER PFAFF:  Just that when -- the
lead tinme for trying to develop that -- if the
bridge did fail and trying to get a plan
toget her, you'd probably use this, because
they're 100 percent plans, | assune; right? So
they're ready to go?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: W're not quite there
yet, but we would -- if we get through the
hearing, we would finalize --

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Finalize the plans?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Yeah.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So they're pretty
close to bid docunents, | assune.

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: C ose.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Yeah.
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So the devel opnent of that will take sone
lead tine as well. So the Town woul d have a
| onger period of a closure if the bridge
happened to be determned to be in a failure
state; correct?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So ny under st andi ng
Is the nost mnimal tinme of closure is the

proposal that you're making currently with the

28 days.
VMR. JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.
CHAlI RMAN MERKT: | have one or two

guestions that | hope are not too far off the
wal | . But we know the approximate vol une of
traffic that's using the bridge now.

Does the nature of the traffic inpact how
long a bridge lasts? |In other words, for
exanple, if you have firetrucks or whatever,
sonet hing wth heavy equi pnment goi ng over it,
does that tend to shorten the life, or is that
not a factor?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Qur bridges are

designed for legal |oads, so they can handl e
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| egal loads. But as the condition of the
sections deteriorate, we nake sure that they
can still handle a load. |f for soneone reason
we feel that it can't, we would down-post it to
a | ower tonnage.

So right now the bridge can still handle
the legal loads. But the traffic onit,
whether it's a tractor-trailer or a regular
car, the bridge is designed for that | oading.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: And it is currently rated
as a -- isit a 4?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: The substructure --

MR TOM LEVINS: It's 3three.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Three, sorry. Yes.

CHAl RVAN MERKT:  Ckay.

So there's not that -- |'m presum ng
there's not that nuch life left.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: It is difficult to
determ ne the deterioration of, but it does get
I nspected every six nonths. So we're out there
| ooking at it, and if they -- our inspectors
see nore deterioration, they'll let us know so

we can nake a determ nati on whether it shoul d
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go down to a 2, whether it should be
down- posted. But we -- at this point, we
haven't had to do either of those.

COMWM SI ONER CHADW CK:  Didn't you nention
earlier -- | thought when it got to a 2, you
woul d close it; did | understand that
correctly?

MR TOM LEVINS: Two is critical, so |
bel i eve that warrants closure.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: It would -- we would
| ook at the information fromthe inspectors,
see what we could hold. Typically, we'll
down- post bridges before we close them but we
do give the Town -- they'll know when we send
them the inspection report.

So they're aware of it. And then if we do
have to close it, which we try not to, we do
make -- we send out a letter of critical
deficiency and that we're closing the bridge.

CHAl RMVAN MERKT:  Yes.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF: So the -- refresh ny
menory. This bridge is the 69th, so it's under
the top 100 Red List this year?
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MR JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:. So are the previous
ones of 68 to O being addressed as well through
t his fundi ng?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Not necessarily
SB 367. W do have other funding categories
froma |l ot of federal funds that we get.

We have a bridge funding that is for rehab
and rehabilitation. W also have a nai ntenance
and preservation programthat tries to keep our
bri dges in good shape so we don't get to this
point. There are other funding groups. So we
| ook at our priority list, and we have a bridge
managenent commttee that wll | ook at this and
determ ne which part's bei ng worked on.

So we prioritize our work based off that.
And with -- sone of the other bridges m ght
have | ower or nunbers in the sanme range, but we
determ ne which one we'll be working on. But
they're on our Red List, so we're aware that
they will be requiring work.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So out of the top

100, are all of those being addressed
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currently? O what's the volune of the
Red- Li sted bridge that you have there? Do you
know? [|f you don't...

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: It does get published
because we -- Red-Listed bridges -- because
every year we, | believe, send it to the
| egislator so they're aware of it.

Whet her they're all being addressed, |
woul d have to |l ook at the list to check, but
they're trying to address as nany as we can.
But we do have limted funding --

(Cross-tal k.)

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:. Red-Listed bridges
are critical bridges in the state.

Wul d you say that if one project gets
del ayed, we'd hop onto another that's of equal
priority or lower? So, in other words, if this
gets del ayed, would it be jeopardi zed because
of the conpetitive nature of how t he Red
Li st --

(Cross-tal k.)

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: W have the

$1.6 million dollar for this project. So if it
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got delayed, it would stay with this product.
W woul dn't actually transfer those funds.
Because all the other projects are funded for
the estimate we had at the tine.

Sonme of the prelimnary estinates are just
that -- prelimnary estimtes. As we refine
the contract docunents, it gets nore refined,
but the projects that we are working on are
f unded.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So you're planning
this for the '25 construction season, right, |
assune?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: (I naudi bl e).

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So if this gets
del ayed because of an alternative, then it
woul d be pushed to the '26 -- if it's a double
year, it'd be '26-'27, '28-'29?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: |If -- depending on
what the delay is, yeah, we would have to
revisit it, but it would push it...

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Push it out.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Yes.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:.  Towards -- okay.
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Thank you.

CHAIl RMVAN MERKT: So based on -- and al |l ow
me to -- I'mnot an expert in this. [|'m
hearing that it's at a category that, if it
slips another notch, it could be problematic
from your professional viewpoint, no?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: We're inspecting these
every six nonths?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Red-Listed bridges --
Red- Li sted State bridges get inspected every
si X nont hs.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: Do you know when this
bri dge was | ast inspected?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: Of the top of ny
head, | do not, but | can get you that
I nformati on.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: Ckay. |It's --

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: No, under st ood.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: The point |I'mgetting at
isif -- we don't know when it's going to go
froma 3 to a 2.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.
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CHAIl RMVAN MERKT: It could happen at the
next inspection, or it could happen a year out;
right? And | don't know how feasible --

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Yes.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: But when that happens,
then your options are really limted in terns
of -- all right. You have to renove it.

It seens to nme, based on what | heard from
you and what | heard fromthe testinony here,
there's no dispute that the bridge has to be
replaced. And if | understand it correctly,
it's the Departnent's view that this bridge has
to be replaced in the near future.

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

CHAl RMAN MERKT: The real question is the
best nethod -- that seens to be what has been
di scussed here tonight. And it involves
trade-offs; aml| correct on that?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: | guess "trade-offs,"
iIs awrd-- we're just trying to mnimze the
i npacts to three or four different variables.
And understandi ng that sone of the inpacts

we're mnimzing; others, you don't actually
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want us to mnimze. But keeping the bridge
open -- | would love to do that, but we're
trying to mnimze the tine we have to keep it
cl osed.

W're also trying to mnim ze the wetl and
I npacts. W're going to try to mnimze the
cost. So it's a balancing act between those
t hr ee.

CHAl RMAN MERKT: Yeah, | see that.

One of the obvious things is the shorter
the duration of the disruption, the better it
Is, | think, for everyone. And the question is
what's the | east inpactful on the community?
And that includes energency services. It also
I ncl udes school s.

One of the virtues of the 28 days is if
it's tinmed correctly, it has a m ninmal inpact
on the schools, and, hopefully, would have | ess
of an inpact on energency services than a
project that gets extends out a | ong period of
tine.

The ot her question is you' ve got the noney

to do this project?
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MR JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: | f additional noney were
required to take an alternative approach, do we
have that noney at the nonent, or would we have
to |l ook for that noney?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: We woul d have to | ook
for that noney.

CHAl RMAN MERKT: Those are the questions
that | had.

Commi ssi oner ?

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Excuse ne.

To | ook for that noney, would that be
t hrough the DOT, or would that be through an
appropriation fromthe | eqgislature?

MR. JASON TREMBLAY: | would have to talk
with our Director of Project Devel opnent to
see, if we needed extra noney, where we coul d
get it from

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  kay.

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: The bridge has been
State funded all along. If we do use federal
funds, we do have to follow the federal rules.

And, so far, because it's all been State
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funded, we are --

COWM S| ONER CHADW CK: Right. Right.

But it's part of the budget for a series
of projects. This is a chunk of the
(i naudi bl e); have | got that right?

MR JASON TREMBLAY: Yes.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK: | want to follow up
on a question | asked earlier, whichis -- as |
understand it, the other two alternatives can
do sonething that cut down through the pilings
t hrough one side to another side and so on.

But pillings down through the foundations.

Even that -- or a tenporary bridge --
(inaudible). Al of them as | understand,
they're going to take sone anount of effort --
will be equipnment to do the work -- sonething
or other, just froma safety standpoint, that
will enclose the bridge. So even to get cranes
or whatever to do wth a tenporary bridge or
trying to get pilings down through to use the
anchor bridge -- whatever it is.

And | guess you nentioned that a | ot of

t hat work woul d acconpany or be acconpani ed by

Duffy & McKenna Court Reporters, LLC
1-800-600-1000



© 00 N O o b~ W N P

N N NN B P R R R R R R R
W N P O © 0 N O U M W N B O

TRANSCRIPTION

75

a one-lane closure at one tine. Well, when we
come back, it still seens to ne there's going
to be sone tine where the whole thing will be
cl osed while you set up those two alternatives.
If I"mcorrect, that means there are several
peri ods where the bridge is going to be closed
anyway. But there's two, three, four days

(1 naudi bl e).

So when | cone back to that question and
ask you to think through that, I'mtrying to
see -- we have 28 days here. It may w nd up
with ten or twelve anyway.

COMM SSI ONER PFAFF:  Can | just follow up
on that before you consider answering that?

Because | heard you fol ks say that the
potential for failure of the bridge when you're
trying to put a tenporary is highly likely
because of the underpinnings of that particul ar
bri dge.

So if that occurred, that would be a total
(i naudible), would it not?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: That -- it would be

-- if we phase the bridge, driving the sheets
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down the mddle of the road could disrupt the
stone-laid abutnents. And there's actually
ti mber | ogs underneath that run perpendi cul ar
to the road that will sort of pull one up.

So that's in the phase. And the tenporary
bridge is just that -- as you pull off to the
side, then you' ve got to put the road back to
the existing road. And then you just have the
addi tional cost, the additional wetl and
I npacts, as you're pulling that tenporary job
to the sides.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  You m ght have said
this but, hearing all that, you'd close the
road while you do it because there wll be
(1 naudi bl e).

MR. TOM LEVINS: They would just be
short-term-- an hour or two closures or backup
time. They can normally keep the traffic and
shift it in one |ane -- have them stoppi ng on
one side and let themgo through. | don't
bel i eve they would have to fully close the road
to set up the operation of building a tenporary

bri dge.
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COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Thank you.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: But if you were to | ook
at one of the other alternatives, would that
have a different environnental inpact that
woul d have to go back and | ook at?

M5. REBECCA MARTIN. If -- for exanple, if
federal funds were going to be used, it's a
different type of environnental review. So
we'd have to do what we call a NEPA
reevaluation for the project, if there was that
change. Additional wetland inpacts -- |
nmentioned these are Priority Resource Area
wet | ands because they're in the floodplain. So
we' d have to go back through our natural
resour ces mneetings.

W try to get the Departnent of
Envi ronnmental Services to be on board with
what ever we're going to be requesting a permt
for ahead. So we go through multiple neetings
for nost projects to get themall on board,
answer all their questions, satisfy themthat
we're reducing and mnimzing the inpacts to

t he maxi nrum extent practical.
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And then on top of that, there are -- we
have in New Hanpshire -- we call it the Arm
Fund, and it's for paying in mtigation for
havi ng i npacts to wetlands and streans. And so
If there were different |evels of wetland
I npacts, there'd be a different expense
associated with that for the project -- that's
not currently built into the project.

So we would -- with a tenporary bridge, we
woul d definitely need nore tine to do the
environnental review and get the permtting in
pl ace.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  So with the
construction of this project being currently
one season, that would only disrupt the
recreational aspect for fishernen, the
outdoors, and stuff |ike that period; correct?
So if it goes to two, there is going to be a
certain level of disruption for the recreation
ability of that particular part of the river;
Is that not right?

MR, JASON TREMBLAY: Correct.

CHAl RVAN MERKT: Any additional questions
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about -- | guess fromthe conm ssion? kay.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  One | ast questi on.

How much wi der woul d the streanbed be in
this new design conpared to now?

COMM SSI ONER PFAFF: 17" to 37', | think
you said; right?

MR. TOM LEVINS: That's the opening of
the -- the bridge opening itself. The riprap

wi |l take up sone of the actual streanbed, so

the actual natural streambottom-- it's going

to be pretty close to what it is now

COMM SI ONER CHADW CK:  So it'll have the
ability to flow nore --

MR. TOM LEVINS. Yes.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  -- hydraulically
flow nore of that stormwater (inaudible)?

MR TOM LEVINS: Yes. Yes.

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  It's higher and
wi der .

So you develop -- on a nain street, it
sounds |like the sanme thing. Your capability
as -- when it rises, we'll have the hydraulic

capability to flow through that.
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(Cross-tal k.)

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  Using one of those
barriers (inaudible); right?

MR. TOM LEVINS: Right.

CHAl RMVAN MERKT: Ckay. As chairman of the
comm ssion, | would like to ask for a notion to
ei ther approve or to decline to approve the
proj ect as proposed.

|s there a notion?

SPEAKER: (| naudi bl e.)

COW SSI ONER PFAFF.  Aye.

CHAI RVAN MERKT:  Chadwi ck?

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Aye.

CHAI RMAN MERKT: Any further discussion
before we vote on --

COW SSI ONER PFAFF:  No. | think we've
done our due diligence on the least inpact to
the community (inaudible).

The road closure -- only a single
recreational period to be (inaudible). | know
that it's safety concerns. (Inaudible).

COMM SI ONER CHADW CK: | think this was

pretty nmuch a deci sion between the 28-day
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(i naudi ble) or the potential that the bridge
fails on its own, or fails through an attenpt
to bifurcate it in tw sections, which would be
a bigger inpact.

CHAI RVAN MERKT: My own feeling is that,
probably, the shorter distance between two
points wll be the shortest distance between
two points. And the sooner we can get this
proj ect done, the | ess opportunity there is for
di sruption to the community.

And | would | ove to have a zero
di sruption, but I don't think that's in the
cards. So that's the way | kind of ook at it.

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  And the only thing
| would add to that is know ng how budgets and
things work, this is lined up now and w | |
start to inpacting (inaudible) whenever.

This could e two years out. And the
bridge is -- (inaudible).

CHAl RVAN MERKT: My concern is that
unpl anned cl osure --

COW SI ONER CHADW CK:  Exactly.

CHAl RMAN MERKT: -- could occur. Ckay.
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| f you gentlenen think we've had
sufficient discussion at this point, | wll
call for a vote.

And | would say all in favor, please say

aye.

COW Sl ONERS:  Aye.

MR. PAUL CODDI NGTON:  And, for the record,
M. Chair, the notion is to approve the design
for the necessity of the project; right?

CHAI RMVAN MERKT: That's what's intended.

Al'l opposed, say "no." And the three
menbers voting in favor of the project, and
none being opposed, let the record al so show
that the community voted in favor of the
project. Having voted on the issue at hand,
our business is concluded, and this neeting is
now adj ourned at 7:20 p.m
(The finding of necessity
neeti ng was adj ourned at:
7:10 p.m)
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